





DEVON HISTORY SOCIETY PUBLICATIONS

Current and back issucs of The Pevan Historian (except for numbes 7, L1, 15, 16 antt
21 ean be obtained from Mrs 8. Stivling, Devon & Exeter Institution, 7 The Close,
Kxeter X1 1EY. (Number 22, which is available, was not a normal issue, but was
totally devoted to being our first Bibliography). Copies up to and including No 36 are
priced at £3, post free, and From No 37 onwards £4. Also available post free are [ndex €0
The Devon Historian (for issues 1-16, 18-30 and 31-45), and Devon Bibliography (14980,
1951, 1982, 1983 and 1984) all £2 each. Bibliographies for more recent years are avail-
able from Devon Library Services,

The Vice-Chaivman, Mr John Pike, 82 Hawkins Avenue, Chelston, Torquay TQu
BES, would be glad to acquire copies of the nut-oi-stack aumbers ol The Decon
Historien listed above.

NOTE FOR CONTRIBUTORS

Articles are welcomed by the Hon, Editor to be considered tor publication in The Deton
Historian. Generally the length should not exceed 2.000 - 3,000 words {plus notes and
possible iHustrations), elthough much shorler pieces of suitzble substance may also he
acceptable, as are ilems of information conceraing museumns, lacal societies and partic-
ular projects being undertaken.

To assist the work of the [ditor and the printers please ensure that contiibulions arve

clearly typewritten, on one side of the paper anly. with double spacing und adequale
raarging, and also, as far as possible, that the journal’s style is followed on such matters
as the restrained use of capital letievs, initial single rather than double inverted come-
mas, the writing of the date thus c.g. 1July 1995, ete.

The Devon History Society — Twenty-FFive Years.

The Deven Flistocy Saciety was founded twenly-Hve yoears ago, in May 1970, No 1 ol
The Devon Historien appeared in the autems o thot ver with articles from Joayee
Youings vn "Devon's First Local Historiang” and Walter Minchinton on “Fasks for Devon
Flistorian=’ and aun editarial by the present writer, The inside cover page shows that the
late Professor Tleskins was the Society's President and that at least eight ol its tinnder
officers and committer members are alive and well and still Hving in the counly and
aclive in the local history weeld.

The curvent Deven Hisiorian s Na 500 The Sociely has had unbil this vear bwvao
Chaicmen, Professors Minchinton awd Youings, and eight distinguished Prosidents.
The anclety eame into existence to 0 a need. The only specifically historieal connty
organisalion existing in 1970 was Lthe Parochial History Scetion of the Devonshire
Aszraciation. This mel on Monday afternoons al No 7 The Cloge every month. The
Devonshire Associalion, theugh publishing a greal deal of Devoen history in its
Pransrctions, was formed for the promotion of *Seience, Literature and the Arts” with
no particutar histocieal briel There were in the county many loeal history societies
hased on towns ar villages ve districts bul no county history society Lo match those in
other counties, A nead was felt to give a forum fo all the Tocal hiztary seeleties in the
county and among mueh elase o pass on information, ideas and literature from the then
fAourishing Stunding Conterence for Local History which published Ve Aniatenr
Historfan that later beeame The Local Eistorian, The first title of the Devon Histary
Socicty was in iact the Standing Conference fur Devon History, [& has bold Salueeday
meetings all over the county, and in Fxeler, atteaded by individuals and reprosenia-
tives of locil socleties. The sociely hias mut almuost everywhere in Devon and is now on
ity secand raund of the county.

(rver the years the society changed its nome to the tidier Devon History Society and,
in this writers view, rather lost ene of its prigmal functions, to be a forwm for other
loral hisloyy soctetios in the county. This function hag been to same extent vevived in
the last two or three vears by heiding meelings where sacictios are inviled Lo talk
about their activilies and put their publications on view,

The Devon Flisturian fay attracted many distinguished contribuiions and is bigger
and hetter than it wos ab the beginning. [t provides an outlet for avticles too short, for
the Transactions of the Deeashire Association and rather dilferent in nature from
those of the Devon and Cornatt Notes and Queries. Theve seems to be room far ail
three publications.

The founder members of the society ave all Lwenty-five vears older, needless to say,
than when the society began and though many ave still active in the loeal history worli
there is anvd will abways be a need for new angd veunger members and committee mem-
bers Lo carry the society and The Devcon Historian on for another twenty-five years,

Flohin Skanes



FENNY BRIDGES IN FENFTON AND GITTISHAM

LB Thomas

fenny Bridges lies on the line of a Roman road and Lthe Boman engineers would have
buill a bridge over the Otter here. Almost certainly it would huve heen a fairly long
timber trestle Lype spanning the river and the part of the surcounding arvea subject to
fooding. The Saxons would probably have continued Lo use this straeture, renewing
the thmber members when necessary. Bishup Stapledon hegueathed 11s Bd (58 penee)
for the repair of the bridge and ‘causeway’ in abuut L326! and it seems lilkuly Lhat, al
that time, the bridge and causeway would have been basically the same timber tI’[’f-i.Hl':
consteuction left by the Ramans, Why Fenny ‘Bridges” in the plaral? ’l‘he!’o are cerlain-
ly Lwo bridges faicly close to one another: o large bridge with County (_Emm-cil nAane-
plates ‘Foenny Bridge’ and a smaller structure with steel parapets a s:hm‘!. (Elstm.\ce 1o
e west, As with Two Bridges® on Dartmaor, the angwer is nol the one immediately
apparent and we have to turn to Leland ta get the true answer, John Leland visited
the area bebweon 1336 and 15453 anid, in his Hinerary®, wrole that the River Otter was
divided iote i changels at *Veniton Bridge’ to teed grist and tucking mills. Three of
the watercourses werg coossied by bridges but the fiest’ which was the smadlest, did
not have a bridge. Leland did not make it clear whether the fivst’ bridge was the most
castecly or westerly but the Ovder Book of 17117 states that two bridges and the half
of pue were in the parish of Feniton and the other half in the pavish of Gitbisham.
Thus, in 1548, the western watercoutse had o bridge, the next two were crossed by
smallish bridpes and the eastern by a Jarger bridge. Ogilby, on his 1875 strip map,
marks the crossing as ‘Hinnyton bridge over the Otter or aulrey flu® while _Dl“"lh an
his 1765 map. marks it as ‘Fenny Bridges™ ns does Mudge's 1808 om‘.--inhch (}I‘(lllat‘lct'
map’. Dr Richard Pococke in 1750 recorded that one aftecaoan he and his companion
came Lo 'Venne bridges over some tributaries of the "Autre” which flooded the road to
such an extent that il was somelimes impassable {in- a few hours®, The Rev Shaw
come Lhis way in 1788 and notett g very pisturesque seene of cots ang ivy-mantled
bridges™. [’::E-whele, in 1793, deseribed ‘Fennyton Great Bridge', the mast ea:-.‘t-e;“ly
bridge, as having two arches and built of quarry stone’, He continued that the ‘r.m(l-
dle-bridge and chape! or weslermaat-bridge, have each one arch, on the: sz_lm.e viver,
There ts, also, a bridge on the Ving, butlt a short time since, of stone andl l‘JI'u:k. ”". ‘

Fenny Bridges has ruther a sad place in the history of Devonshire. 'll‘he I‘t'ta_]tr)l‘tl.y'rpl
people in the Westeountry were not much affected by the Reformation until 1539
when it was enacied that on Whilt Suaday, 9 June of that vear, the Latin Mass was to
b ahandoned and the new Praver Book in English used exclnsively in its stead. This
deprivation of 2 birtheight by the state is the stuff that rebellions wre made f;[‘:thfl on
Whit Monday, the parishioners of Sampford Courtenay ‘poersuaded” theiv priest,
Father Horper, to don his vestments once more and say the Masgs in Latin. '[I‘his was
overt contempt for authority and the local magistrates hastened to the vitlage Lo
remenstrate with the people. But the rebels were in oo mood to histen and burned
their boats by slaving a loeal farmer who had vebuked them rather tactlessly.
Mustered by their leaders and gathering strongth as they weat they marched towards
Creditan, t.;; he joined by o contipgent fram Cornwall, and on to Exeter where they
called on the city to surrender, There was sympathy with the cause {vom within the

vity walls hul no one, least of all the mayor, wished to get tnvolved and the gutes
remained Hrmly closed. Vaced with this wnexpected rejection, the rebels made a =eni-
ous tactical blunder by laying siege to the cily and wasting Lthe advantage of time that
they had. This gave the government the opportunity to despateh Russell, the Lord
Privy Seal, wesbward with an army of CGerman and [alian mercenaries. By late July
he wax in Honiton, impatiently dramming his Augers and waiting for reintorcements,
ammunition and money. On 28 July tews reached Russell thal a detachment of vebels
had advanced oo the London road to Fenny Bridpes, where they were camped in the
meadow on the north cast side of the bridges, Encovraged by the blooduhirsty Carews,
Ruszell marched on ey Bridges and, after a lierce baltle, foreed the rebel army to
vebredt back to Fairmile, As they made the tong climb up the Raman road to what is
nuw called Straightway Head, they were met by *a newe crewe of Carnyshe men to the
number of bwo hundrethe or cighte score persons’!. Taking udvantage of the element
ol surprise, the cornbined foree moved stealthily baek towards the meadow and, under
cover of the hedgeraw, let off o fasilbade of srrows followed by @ concerted charge, The
mercenartes, who woere engaged in plundeving the dead und wounded from the carlier
battle, fed leaving their casuatiies behind, But the vebels’ triumph was short lived,
for Russell, probably encaruped somewhere north of Gittisham, ratlied his roops and
swepd, down on the enemy. A lieree battle followed unlil the Cornish arrows were
spaent and the superior training of Russel’s troops won the day. About 300 rebels were
slnin and probably the same number of Russell’s men giving the battleground the well
deserved name of Bloody Meadow. Reinfirced by Lord Grey of Wilton and his cavalry,
Russell followed the rebels to Clyst St Muary and, after crushing them at the Battle of
Clyst Heath, set about the grisly business of rervibution ‘witheut mevey and without
{orm of law’12,

The first mention of the bridges in the Quarier Session Ovder Book was al the
Epiphany Sesston-1704 when it was veported that the eastern arch of ‘flenny bridge
als 5t Annes bridee’ was in a pose state of repair™. {1 was norwally repaired by the
parishivners of Gittisham but thiy were able to show Lthat the parsh was ‘of a small
Extont apd vallue’ and the poor stale of the bridge was caused by ‘great and extraordi-
nary varriages’ and ‘the rapidness of the River'. {nitially the court mude an order giv-
Ings a pratuity of £15 wwares the repain However, ather parizhes got wind of the mage-
istrates” unusual generosity and made similur applications for their bridges, The
court, after considering the ill consequences that might happen ta the publick by gra-
iuities of that nature’, reseinded the order. However, somelhing necded Lo be done to
vepularise the maintenance of the three bridges and the Treasurer, James Sheppard,
was chavged with investigating the matter with Mr Sarjeant Uibbon, vetained as
Counsel ot a fee of one guinea (£1.05) Rvidently Sheppard did nol treat his task as
very irgent because no report was miade untit 1711 when the court was told that Lady
Kirkham had conveyed certain lands adjacent to the bridges in Lrust Lo provide
monies for the repair of the bridges™. The Kivkhouns of Blagdon were Catholies and it
seems likely that Lady Kivkham's giff was as a memorisl to the Cathalics lost al the
buttle of Fenny Bridges. The trustees, Philip Wreight and John Skinner, refused to
repair the hridges beeause, they said, the protits frorm the land were insublicient Lo
Bnanee the repairs. Also the trustees had maintained only the part of the bridges in
Feniton and had never contributed anyihing towards the arch of 'ye mreate Bridge in
Cittisham. The oviginal deeds were read and the opinion was given that the chavity
was ot confined to any bridges or parizh but applied to 'ffinney Bridges generally’.






meant that the contractor was in breach of this particular contract, A wrilten contract
for Perriman's bridge had been drawn up by the cterk but, despite two reminders,
White had not brought Perviman and his bondgmen to Exeter to execute the contract.
[t recommended that, in future, the treasurer should make no payment under a con-
tract until he had a certificate from the clerk that the contract in gquestion had heen
execuled by the parties. The commitice had examined a number of designs for a
replacement bridge and it recommended ane prepared by Green suhject to ceriain
altevations in detail. Lastly the committee expressed the view thal, in order the better
to manage the counly’s bridges, a civil engineer of ‘approved Talents and Ability’
should be appointed instead of the present five surveyors.

The courd accepled ail the committee recommendations and, al the Epiphany
Sesstons 1808, ordered that the Clerk of the Peace enter into a contract with James
Green for his amended design of bridge at a cosl of £4,077. Groen’s design was a three
span brick arch strueture will two suter gpans of 41 foet 6 inches (12.65 m) and a cen-
Lral span of 47 feet (14.33 m) and a width between parapels of 20 feet (6,10 m} The
piers and abutmenls were of Parbeek ashiar®®, Curiously the finished bridge has o
stone tablet over the arch on the dewnstrewn face with no inseription on it. The final
cost, whicl included the cost of land und fairly extensive river works, was £5,761. s
11d {£5,761.25).

The idea of appointing one surveyor of county bridges for the whole of Deven was
not new. AL the Midsummer Sessiong of 1757, it was ordered that an advertisement
should be placed in the Exeler and Sherbourne papers inviting appliculions for the
pust of ‘one General Surveyor of the Bridyes of this County™!, Again in 1786, a
‘General Surveyar... Lo inspect into and ook after the County Bridges’ was sought
through advertisement®®. None of these venlures came to anylhing Jor, when
Perviman's ill fated bridge was being built in 1806, there were five surveyors ol
hridges, one in each Grand Division of the County. 'The Bridges Act of 1803 enacted,
among pther Lhings, that most of the powers under the Act should be vested in the
surveyorsl, Although there is no record of their having done so, Devon magisivales
must have considered the implicalions of the Act and decided to stick with their con-
temporary arrangement. However, problems with indifferent workmanship and finan-
cial irregularities were being reported to the court more often and the collapse of
Fenny Bridges must have been the last straw. The court aceepted the recommendation
of its commitiee and, at the Midsummer Sessions 1804, it deeided that it would be
‘very ceonomical and advantageous to uppoint o Civil Engineer to look after the
County Bridges™ . The magistrates must have found fixing a salary a fittle difficalt.
The total sataries of the five surveyors was £140 but the court knew that, for example,
the salary of Thomas Telord, County Surveyor of Shropshive, was 500 per annum,
Telford, who had been appoinled in 1787, was r well egtablished engineer of some
repute. On the other hund, Shiopshire had & mere thivty counly bridges to Devon's
2379 At Michaelmas Sessions 1808, they decided to appoint James Green, wha had
obviously nequitled himsel? well as adviser on St Soviow’s, Newton Pappleford and
Fenny Bridges, at a salary of £300 per annum®™. 1L alse insteucted the elerk to pive
notice to the five surveyaors that they were to quil at the lellowing Christmas and Lhat
in the meantime they were to work under Green's direction, The young (Green tackled
his duties promptly and efliciently and, in three months, inspected alt the county’s
237 bridges and submitted a reporl on their condition to the magistrates with an esti-
mated expenditure of ‘the alarming =um of £20,000° Lo put the bridge stock in a vea-
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sanable state of repair™. By the time he loft the county’s employment in 1841, he had
heen involved in some way or other with the building of over seventy bridges.

Fenny Bridges stands today much as Green built it and now has the distinetion of
being one of the last, if not the last, hump hacked bridge on o trunk road in Devon.
The bridge over the River Vine built in 1769 was rebuilt in 1809 and id now called
Fenny Mill Bridge It was washed away in exceptional flooding caused by 5.25 inches
(133 mm) of rain falling in the upper Otter valley between 4 pm and 10 pryon 10 July
1968%. Ft was replaced temporarily by a Bailey bridge erected by sappers and perma-
nently by the present prestressed concrete bridge completed on 27 February 187097,
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COB WALLS, AND SHOES AND BOOTS

Bahs Stutchbury

The discussion ot the recent AGM about why shoes and boots should have heen found
in or on the top of oid cob walls of houses reminded me of other places in which they
could have bieen left, although, this Lime, accidentally,

Aunty Gladys used to live in one of Aller Cottages, no longer in existance. Three hab-
itable cob cottages were there in the 1940s and 1950s. Attached to the third cottage
was the remains of the fourth, a ruin with a chimney. Water was from a spring at the
very foot of the lane, where there was a round washing bowl of, T think, stone. I remem-
ber the bowl was red like the surrounding fields. The coltages were down the lane from
Aller Gate, to be found off the B3215 at Clannaborough Cross, taking the firat on the
leeft which leads to Zeal Monachorum by way of Serstone and Ulapper Cross, and were
probably for the farm workers of Merrifeld Farm originally, which is a fittle to the
narth.

When it could be afforded it was a great treat to talke the old ‘Dow Belhy’ ithe engine
part of the bus, it was said, began to move before the passenger part!) into Crediton
and sometimes into the still wrecked, Exeter. Flere the hus reimained in Lhe yard of the
Crown and Sceptre near the North Gate.

Afler and during rain Aller Lane was a ‘running stream” and what we would now call
‘wellie-hoots’ were needed, or very old shees, in neither of which we wished to be seen

in town. The bus stop was at Aller Cross, the bus on ‘Tuesdays and Fridays only. Our

hoots and shoes were left buried in the long prass of the hedge at the corner. 1 often
wonder, when I drive past the place, if there are the remains of any pairs of fifty year
old faotwear stitl waitny to be found and wondered about.

{JWEB. STUTCHBURY is Chairman. Crediton Avea History & Museum Societyd

THE ‘COASTGUARD STATIONS’ AT BABBACOMBE
AND TORQUAY 1818-1826

Robert Perking

The: Preventive Boat's Crow.,

Al the beginning of the nincteenth century the forces engaged in the protectiom ol the
revenue and the prevention of smuggling included the customs officiuls in the ports,
sab-parts and ereeks’, the riding officers along the coasts, and the revenue croizers.
Thera were the customs-house boats and military detachments which could be called
aut when smuggling was suspected. Within the customs pert of Dartmouth in 181:3-14,
for cxample, the collector and eleven stafl hased at Dartmouth incindud an inspector of
riding afficers and o riding officor of the first class 1o assist him. In addition, a first
class riding afficer, John Bunden, patrelled the coast from Dawlish to ‘Bahicombe'; oth-
ers patrolled wronnd the Start Point to Portlomouth and from Saleombe to the River
LErme. Consl waiters were stationed at Torquay (Flenry 1. Weeks), Paignton, Brixham,
"Totness’, Salecombe and Bautham'.

The 1807 Act *lo make more elfcetual provision for the frevention of Smuggling...
provided forr the prohibition or licensing of curtuin classes of vesse! and boat, and for
hoats te be navigated by o certain sumber of wen in propartion to their tonnage? In
L1809 the government established a Prevenlive Water-Guard; o "Smuggling Preventive
Boatl Service’, as & tater Act® called it, was 1o aporate in coastal waters i support of the
revenue eruizers. It became offeetive 5 Juty 1810, The sauth const distriet, [rom London
Lo Lands Eud, had twenty-Ehree revenae cutters and favty-two preventive boats, under
an ingpecting commander, Captain William Blake, based at Cawes. It appears that
land was leased in'relation to stations al Dartraouth 28 September 1810 and Hope
Cove 4 January 18035

In February 1816 Capt. JM. Tanchelt RN, was appointed the st Comptroller-
General of the Preventive Boats which were now placed under the eonteol of Lhe
Treasury. The preventive beat servier was ve-organised into thirty-one districts, each
under the control of an inspecting commander, and some 140 stations. It seems possible
that a preventive hosl crew were first stationed at Babbacombe at some time after
1809, probably after lhe ve-orpanisation of 1816, when there was an inspecting com-
mander at Brixham, and certainly by 1818, The surviving establishmoent records show
there weve preventive stations within the port of Dartmouth at ‘Babbicombe’, Brixhuam
and Toreross hefore 18217,

Livut. Dombrein's Repart.

Lirul. James Dombrain was appointed Deputy Comptrotler-General, Preventive
Boats, 11 November ISLTE [0 January 1818, "The Lovds having had under eonsidera-
tion the prosent state of the contraband trade on the coasts of Deven and Dorsetshive,
he wirs directed (o ‘proceed thither without delay and to veport...for their Lordships’
mlormation such obseyvations and suggestions as may appear Lo him best calenlated
for Lhe further protection of the revenue in these districts”™. At some Lime hefore 4
January 1819, Licut. B de Mantmorencey, inspecting comamander for the Brixham dis-
trict, wrote to Caplain Hanehett to vecommend ‘that g eottage ab Babhicombe may be
hived $or a walchouse” On 5 Febraary 1819 the Treasury Commissinners asked Lient,
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Dombrain o inguire into the subjert in Uhe eourse of the survey in which he was then
engaged, Licut. Dombrain submitted his veport on 16 February 1818; om 25 February
the Commissioners of Customs woere sutharised to purchase the eollage in question
provided il appeared om survey Lo be gropeely built. Care was ko be taken that tho pre-
venlive crew paid rent at the established vate®,

Tire Watelt and Boat House wf Bahhaeanthe Begelh.

Lival. de Montmorvency’s duties as inspecting commander at Brixham censed 3
Seplember 1819, Responsibility for Babbacombe passed to Capt. Fawkios, the new
inspeeting cotmtander for the Dartmouth district’™. T appears that the hive ol a cat-
tage ab Babbzeabe was not proceeded with, but during 1818 the building ol a new
watch and boat-house was commenced at Babhacombe beach, appacently making use
in part of tlaterials abready on site, £ wag built next to the suaimer-house belonging to
“The Glen”. On Y June 1820 Capt. Hawkins noted that ‘L is a thatehed building with the
wall stones arising on the spot, and in clearing away the work T have been obliged Lo
make a good entrance for the boats. A man undertook the labour for the slone’H,

The buifding contructor was 4. Readle of Teignmouth who submitted his bill or
erecting the Proventive Watch and Boat-house at Babbycombe as per estimale, £200-
4g.-4d.” to the Commissioners of Custams at Dartmoeuth. He wrole to Capt. Hacding 30
Mareh 1820 asking him tn report the work finished and added; “The mast shall be fixed
at any time when the viggiog is ready and if any little thing remaing which you deem
necessary it shall be dane’™. Capt. Harding, however, did not think it vight to attach
the usunl certificate to Rendie's hill. He did nol consider the Hooring to the waleh room
to be truly and well exceuted: part was ‘nol now either ploughed and tangued ov ceiled
and my observation is it admits so much wind as to render the Wateh Room uncomfort-
ahle and an every washing of the (oor the stores stowed in the Beathouse wnderneath
will be injured” The builder had accepled that the chimney in the men's walch room
wis not of the customary height. Capt. Harding koew nothing of the extras chavged
and, singularty enough, Me. Rendle said not one word ahoat them in requesting certihi-
cation of his Bill. ‘As to the fith item where my erder is again given, 1 remarked that
the painting was badly exeeuted and so fong in hand thal the erew could not get tn so
soon by a Quarter of a Year [ had reported to the Comptroller-General they would be:
expected to dott,

However, one matter did meet with Captain Havding's approval; in June 1820 he
complained to G. Delavand, the Secretary of the Preventive Water-Guard Office, that
the officers bed 2puce I e new waleh house at Toreross wos ‘much inferior to the
plan of the one al Babbicainbe where the chief officer has a smaoll Sleeping Room to
himself An alterntion to the plans was approved provided the work could be carried
out at no extra cast ',

Apparently the problems with the building at Babbacombe were avercome. The pre-
ventive boal crew settled to its dufies in the new station at some time alter March
1820, Dataile of the lease of the site from the Cary estale were settled 14 August
1527 Tt was to be several vears before cottages were to he provided but they were
ciearly better accommodated than many: the 1820 Act empowered commanding officers
of vessels employed to prevent smuggling to haul their vessels on shore, ‘not being a
Garden or Pleasure Ground, or Places whicll bave been ordivarily used for Bathing
Machines...” because ‘at divers Stations eu the Coast of the United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Ireland, and on the Shores and Bauks of the Rivers, and of the Breaks und
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[ulels thereof, the Olficers and Crews ol the Ships, Vessels and Boats employed in the
Provenlion of Smuggling, have no Dwelling louses approprialed for their
Habitation...and it is expedient at some of them that such Officers and Crew.. shall
and may reside and remain in the suaid ships, Vossels and Boats' '

The Fetablishnivnt ot Bubbavombe,

Few if any of the crow at a station eould have been local men. Those nominated for
appointment Lo Lke preventive boal service under the arangements laid down by Lthe
Treasury 8 Februacy 1817 were examined by an inspecting commander; usually at a
fAanking district, avd appointed by the Treasury following reccipt of a salisfactory
report of qualifications, They wore immediaiely sent to sevve as probationary boatmen
al stations elsewhere as & matter of policy, to aveid collusion and intimidation. The
cstablishment at Babbacombe preventive station before (822 was six, including the
Chief Officer’. He changed frequently: Richard Heale was Chief Olficer for a period
before 13 dJanuary 1820 Lieat. Wm. Porter RN., appointed to the Waler Guard from
Louwdon subsequent to Februnry 1820, became probationary Chief Officer al
Babbacombe before being ovdered Lo Svonce Potot, Cowes, 17 March 1821.1%

Preventive boat stations were usaally equipped with four or six-oared gigs. On 27
Se{JiﬂllﬂhQ?' 1821 extensive vepairs ta the four-eared boat at Babbacombe were authe-
vised.”

The Preventive Station al Torguay

Meanwhile Hhe protection of the revenue in Porbay faced increasing difficultios.
Fhore were revenue eraizers stationed in the Dortmouth distriet, but much offective
aetton in Torbay depended on the boats stationed al Brisham, The Commissioners, as
ever cohscious of the cost of the service, came Lo yuestion why there were ‘three Glut
buatimen in the King's hoat at this place’, The inspecting commander avgued that
Tarbay was a furge expanse of water and any reduction wauld inhibit the interception
of vessels suspected of smuggling. Four Dragoons were stationed at Paigoion. [n 1820
an officer of the dth, Light Dragoons complained of the froquency of calls made upon
them where smuggling was suspected’®,

On 9 July 1821, 5 R.Lushington, Secretary Lo the Treasury, wrote to Lieat.
Dombrain, then acting Complreoller-Ceneral: ‘Lhe Inspecting Commander at Exmouth
having tepresented that comvenicnt spot of ground for the eveetion of o wateh and
hoat-house for the preventive station al Torquay, which is much needed, may be had of
Str Lawrence Palk for a term of 99 years or 3 lives at the annual rent. of 3 gns, [am
comumanded by the Lurds. Come of TEM. Treasury to direcl vou to cause a watch and
hoat house to be crected Gor Lhe prevendive station at Topguay ™2

The Cogst Guard

In 1822 Lhe preventive boats, the rovenue eruizers mnd the riding oflicers were unit-
ed Lo form the Coast Guard, under the eontrol of the Board of Customs®!, Captain
William Bowles RN, was appointed Comptroller-General and an exteasive buitding
programme of cotiages and wabch houses was commenced. In the period FS22-25 baond
wits lessed for Coast Guard purposes within the port of Exeter at ‘Great Weston',
Sidmouth and Exwmouth, within the port of Dartmouth at Babbacombe, Torquay,
Brixhaw, Prawle, Salcombe and ‘Charlaborough’s and within the port of Plymouth at
Mothecombe and Wembury or Yealn'*,

1:






places on the Coast and although all the buildings are thatched yet still we think a
Slate rool if reguired may be so formed as to give satisfaction to all’. The
Commissioners sent Mr. Carey the plans, an architect was consulted and on 5 Avgust
1824 Cosserat wrote to the Commissioners to ask that the roof be made more flat and
to project beyond the wall. Apparently this suggestion of Regency style was not entively
affective. Six tenders for the erection of the cotlages were submitted by 12 July 1825,

The Office of the Ceast Guard Surveyor for Buildings noted between 1828 and 1831:
‘Narvtmouth District:...Babbicombe; the Cottages having been Erected (in 1826
Cutside Painting only is necessary. the Coll. and Comp. may cause Estimates to Paint
twice in il with good white Lead, ete” Wm. Penticosl submitted the lowest estimate to
paint the outside of the cottages for £9-11s.-8d., ‘and for colouring the external walls by
Mr. Davey twice over, and Lo the Weh. and Boal House at £6-15s.-7. 1/2d™8,
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trees on tap of the site bul otherwise designates the earthwark as in the larger scale maps.

Fioally the second edition of the Ordnance survey map ol 6 inches Lo the mile was
vevised in 1803 and published in 1906 (Devonshire Sheet LIX NE The designation of the
il i icdontical to that on the firgt edition of this scale.

G perusing Lhe Sites and Monuments Register in the office of the County
Archacalopist, the writer came across notes recortding that Grinsell had suggested Lhal
Lhis earthwork might possibly be part of the landseaping of Widwourthy Court by George
Stanfey Repton ¢ 1830, rather than a barrow Girinsel! had also stated that Repton’s plans
and drawing of Widworthy Court and its landseape design, showing two conieal hills in
the background. were in the Library of Lhe Roval Institute of British Avchilects. '

The suggestion that the earthwork on Castle Hill might be part of o nineteenth century
landseape fealure in the park of Widheorthy Court conflicted with all the previous docu-
mentation and cilled for investipation. Grinsell, of course, is a well-known professional
archasolngiat whe is an autherily on barrows. Perhaps that was why on his visit in 1982
Jeinsel] felt it might be part of the landscaping rather than a barrow, Ceortiamv in his
article! the lllowing yoar he lists @ round ‘Bronze Age barrow or earthwork of lnter date’
but that was on the northi-western spur of Widworthy Hill, below Widworthy Camp, Lo the
wesl of the Hollow Way which vuus up southwards towards Colyton Grom Lhe back of
Widworthy Bartan. (National Grid Reference 8Y 21369896 as opposed Lo Lhe National
Gl Reference ol Castle [HIL which is 3Y 21269947). No-one had ever previonsly stguest-
edl that the earthwork al Castle Tl was a barrow,

Widworthy Court was destgned and built forr Edward Marwood Blon, TBaguire, in 1830,
in place of the old manor house, now Widworthy Barton.'® ITe did not hecame a baranet
until 1838 (pace Cherry and Pevsner). Gringells suggestion made a visit to the Drawings
Collection of The British Architectural Library of the Roval Institute of British Archilects
cassontial 1o get to the truth of the matter. There are five thiawings in that collection being
designs of Widworthy Cowrt for B.M.Eltan tlater Sir Bdward Elten, Bart.) by
€18 Repton. 1" None of the plans or perspectives which thase five drawings comprise shows
any such landseaping feature, as Geinsell suggesteds indeed none of the three perspectives
cunt be orentated toward the east-south-cast of Widworthy Court where Castle Hill
slunds,

lefore leaving this suggestion it {s pertinent to refer to the various middie and lower
lerraces on the wost of the fort, which Ramsden desevibed ' Na souire, least of all Edward
Marwond 15iton who was 1ioled for his frugality. would be likely to indulge in such extend-
ed carthworks (o surround o landseaped mound,

On the mound stand Bive trees which are from the north clockwise:

a syvamare (Acer psewdoplatanus by with o givth of 10 feet 11 inches at B feet above
vrownd;

a field maple tAcer campestre) of 8 feet 3 inches in giveh al the same level above pround:

a sweel chostnut (Castanesn sativa M) with a givth of 16 foet 8 inches ot o hike height:

a canunon lime (Tiliz x Buropaes) of 9 leel 214 inches girth al o similar height:

and finally a beeeh (Fagus sibvatica L) of 15 feet givth at thad height.

All five are mature trees and Steve Rippin of the Bast Devon District Council obzerved
thab the sweet chiestout ts going into decline which makes 1L ahoul 290 years old. That
tree alone disproves rinse]ls suggestion heeanse it predates Repton hy same ninety
years.®

To sum up the facts against Grinsells suggestion that the earthwork at Castle Hill is a
landgeaped feature comskrueted ahout 1830, one can mayshal the following:
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{a} the earthwork is shown in the estate plan of 1780;

(b} the Reverend J T Tucker described it in 1781;

¢} the Reverend R.Polwhele reiterated thal description in his great Iistory of
Devonshire in 1797,

(dy the first edition of the Ordnance Survey in 1808 shows the outline of the earthwork;

(e} the Lysons mentioned it as an ancient earthwork in their great history i 1822,

{f)  G.S.Repton’s plans and perspectives contain not the slightest suggestion of such tand-
scaping in 1830,

{g) Stirling deseribed it im 1838;

{h) Woollcombe repeated that deseription in 183%:

(it the Tithe Map of 1839 read with the Tithe Apportionment gives the feld names of
‘Castle Wood' and Barbary” which confirm the antiquity of the site;

;3 Hutchinson in 1867, which year is only about 35 years after the landscaping is sug-
gested to have taken place, does not mention such & modern possibility among his
conjectures for this site but lists three very ancient ones;

(k) the Ordnance Survey in 1887-8, less than 50 years after lhe suggested Jandseaping,
accepled the earthwork as an antiquity;

(U Some time after 1945 a surveyor of the Ordnance Survey described it as a small forti-
fied site, possibly a late Saxon manor or buri;

(m) Ramsden, a gallant eolonel with skill in survey and knowledge of the local history.
was in no doubt as to the sile’s antifjuity in 1847;

(ny likewise Higham in 1975

(o) finally the dendrology gives the coup de grace.

That this earthwork is a landscaped feature appears as Fanciful as another suggestion
mentioned by Higham!” that it was a windmill meund.

What the history of the carthwork really is and when it was formed remain open ques-
tions; Hutchinson's thivd conjecture that the De Widworthy Family may have had a
medieval castle on that spot ties in with Flighams favoured conelusion that the fort was
tounded during the civil wars of Stephen’s reign (1135 — 1154). That possibility was con-
stdered by the Ordnance Survey but so was the attribution of a late Saxon manor. The
Vikings fivst raided England in 789, landing probably in east Devon. Those raids contin-
ued until carly in the eleventh century.” Ramsden eonsideved that the earthwork was
apparently a Saxon burh, such as were built in considerable numbers at the period of the
Danish raids, Higham still thinks his original suggestion in 1979 that we have here a
landseaped medieval moffe is still the most likely answer?!

As Tacitus wrote: Quot homines ot senfenfine.
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A WEDDING THAT RANG ALARM BELLS

Norman Hillyer

Partsh registers nowadays tend to be pedestrian lists of names and addresses. Time was
when chureh officials weve not so prim. Occagionally they deemued it necessary to painl in
the background.

On 17 April 1763 the marriage register of Hatherleigh has this entry:

“Thomas Lillyerop, biacksmith, and Mary Able, spinster, both of this Parish: witnesses
John Angel & Samuel Morecomhbe!

Far firom the couple Hving happily ever afler, the outraged Parish Clerk madce sure
that the world knew what did happen after that wedding, The Clerk fumed in the regis-
ter:

“This wench was wilthout constraint from friends married on Sunday to a yvoung lusty
fond hushand, and without provocation from him ran away the next Wednesday with a
soldier. She was assisted in her escape by Mary, the daughler of James Angel senior,
which latler weneh knew her to be going to her adullerer”

The double disclaimer (without constraint. . withoul provoeation’) hints that the fam-
ilies were anxious to wash their hands of any blame, How could it possibly be their Fuit?

We should like to have the bride’s side of the story. There was surely more to it than
appears from the Pavish Clerk’s broadside. Could this have been something of an
imposed mateh? Mary Able can have had scant regard for the Justy fond® groom sho
immediately deserts for a soldier she must have known alveady.

Her fellow-conspirater Mary Angel, aceording fo the baptism repistor, wis slill only 18
at the time of the wediding, Probably the britde was about the same nge. The inlvrmation
i nol, recorded.

The name of ihe congpirator Mary Angel does pot appear among Jaler marringes oy
burials. She must have left. Natherbeigh for good, no doubl banished and disewned Loy
aiding and abetting, The: thwarted bridgearoom, the Tusty Blucksmith, also seems to have
gone away, ki his name too is absent From iter regisiers,

The Lillyerops. the Ables ind the Angels were Jong-established Jocal familios, and
highly embarrassed by what had taken place. Tongues were sure to wag vet again when
later marriages involved these householgls,

As for Jumes Angel senior, whose daughter Mary was implivated, Je was Gked nol to
be able to pul the matter hedbind himy (or Jong, e had a qon, also called James, who him-
sell became Parish Clerk siv years later James Junmior would bave kepl a beady eve an
the weddings he attended during his Lhivly-six years in oflice, Bom 17689 untit his doeath
in 1805 at the age of 01

By that date, Hatherleigh's chorned up waters had settled, steadied by saintly viear
and ofd friend of the Wesleys, Cradock Glaseott, then ac the midpaoint of his flly-year
meunmbency.

Twao centuries after the event, it needs a novelist or 2 playweisht to sugeest bow G Gl
the tanfalising gaps in the take of the blasksmith’s bride, neeried an Sunday, wisstug on
Wadnesday. But no writer of fiction is vequined to cotjure up same idea of the huet feel-
tngs that the runaway couples thonghtiessly lett behind.

1The Rewd, Norman Hiflver was Vicor of Hathevicigh 1979086, and Twelped el the Batlnrleigh Qestory
Soediety following the v’ wrillerion s 198 E Ve petived to Shethorne, Dorset 0
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REVIEWS

(Readers are advised that opinions expressed by reviewers awe Cheir own aud nol neces-
garily those of the Editor or of the Devan Histary Society as a wholel,

The New Maritime History of Devan. Voalume [L From the late eighteenth cen-
tury to the present day. Fdited by Michaal Dafty, Stephen Fisher, Basil Greenhill,
David J. Starkey and Jovee Youings. Published by Conway Maritine Press (n assacia-
tion with the University of Exeleor, DTy, illustrated, L3500, ISBN 0 86177 633 7.

This concluding volume ithe fivst was ceviewed in The Docon Histarian Ne, 47 brings
the maritime history of the county down to the present decade. T is itherefare very
much the thraniele of a rise fallowoed by a ateady decline which has left the county Lo
day with « few smalt ports, @ tenuaus shipbuilding industry, a much rodoced naval
presence and o still effective fishery, Yoehting and seaside tourism scem tikely to be the
predaminant ‘maritime’ aetivities of the next eentury. Devon’s diminished domestic sea-
faring interests in the bwentieth have been masked hy the operation of external factors,
the principal of which has been Lthe presence of the Royal Navy. Geography made
Plymouth the ideal base for a western squadron covering the French Atlantic ports and
by the end of the nineteenth contury Devonport had developed from a ship repair yard
into one which could build battleships of the largest classes. It employed and trained
thousands of skilled eraftsmen while as a4 manning port the area was home for nurmer-
ous satlors and theiv families. Since the last war the Doclkyard has been continuously
reduced. [ no longer builds ships while the base supports only 2 small number of war-
ships. Shore Lraining establishments have been run down and Devonport will soon
cease to be the centre for Lhe edueation of engineer oflicers. Dartwmouth for naval offi-
cers and Lympstone [or the Royal Marines remain. Six chaplers are devoted to the
Navy in Devonshive, one of which considers the place of the Dockyard in the local econ-
omy and finds that it may have had a stultifving effect on industrial development out-
sicle its walls,

Emigration was another aspect of Devon maritime life inspived largely from outside
the county, Plymouth was & main port of despatch for government emigaants from all
parts of the kingdom, mainly Lo Australasia and in lesser numbers Lo Canada and
South Africa, while the smaller Devon porls tended Lo earry (are paying passengers to
North America. A separate chapler deacvibes conditions in the emigrant ships. A thicd
gift of geography was the position of Plymouth as the fivst or last port of call for the
embarking or landing of passengers and mail by the great acean linevs, a practice
which eomtinued down to the 1960s.

Perhaps of most interest to the loeal historian is the group of chaplers describing
Devon ports, shipping and shipbuilding during the period. Here there is much useful
economic and social malerial including studies of individuals engaged in different
aspects of shipping during the last century, Although Devon built and operated wooden
ships as long as these were economic it never really made the transition to iron and
steam, Successful shipping operators tended to move their businesses to larger ports
serving ceonomically more important areas, The fishing industry, by contrast, did rea-
sonably well.

This is the first major maritime history of an English county. As such il does raise
the question whether ov not it is possible Lo separate those aclivities which are locally
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generoted from thase which are national. The editara have not attempted to make this
distinction, probably wisely, because Devon withoul the Navy, the governmenl emigra-
tion trade and Lhe visiting ocean liners would have had a maritime history in the late
nineteenth and twentieth centuries of ne greater significance than that of a number of
ather, minor, English seaforving counties. The scope of the work is so wide and the
amount of detail so extensive that assessment of the component chapters is not practi-
cable in a review of this kind. Nevertheless, although there is much infurmation about
ships built or owned in Devon there is no assessment of the numbers of Devon seafar-
ers, in the Navy or merchant serviee, at different times or of the impartance of their
carnings to the ecanomy of the county. Some were sailors of distinetion. Tt might have
been move apprapriate to have heard about them than abosut sea-side holidays.

As with its proclecessor this volume is well produced and illustrated with extensive
references where appropriate. IL is encouraging that the publishers have not found it
neceessary b raise the price which remains very veasonable for what is offered.

Adrian Recd

The Western Rising 1549: the Prayer Book Rebellion, by Philip Caraman,
Tiverton 1994, 140pp, ISBN 1-898386-033-X, £9.95.

The rebelliong againat the governmerlt of Edward Vi which erupted in Cornwall and
Devon in 1548-9, but especiatly in the summer of 1549, continue o arouse the interest
of authers and this new study by a well-known historian of Tuder Catholicism,
althvugh drawing very heavily on the great work of Mes Rose-Troup, will stand com-
parison with any of the offerings of her many suveessors. s great strength is that it
tells a coherent story which wilt be enjoyed even by Lthose whe have read John Hooket's
near cantemporary narrative. For those new Lo the episode it will serve as an excellent
introduction. They will be feft in no donbt as to the author's sympathies, which are
entirely with the rebels, but it is a pity that, in his concluding chapter, he should allow
his natural bias Lo take over to the extent that he can write thatl the lailuve af the
rebellion was followed by ‘a dechine of religious devotion’, and by ‘religious inactivity
and widespread disinterest’. However Hooker, following what he called hisg “godly’ pro-
clivities, was wont to be much less charitable in the ather direction,

By and large Father Caraman has little new to add (o the solution of the many prob-
lems which still cloud our understanding of what lay behind the risings. In lact too
often he begs the question, such as in his apparent conviction, in spite of evidence —
whivh he himsell cites — of considerable involvement by the gentry and other men of
stnnding in thelr communities, as well as their considerable dislaneing from the forces
of law and order, that this was essentially a vising of ‘the commons’ of the two counties
apaiust their betters, Then there is the guestion of why Plymouth put up little or no
resistance while Exeter stood si irm, 1t was not simply becausge of their differing veli-
gious affinities, Exeter at least being very divided, as Father Caramuan, Dllowing
Hooker, clearly shows. Was it not something Lo do with the existence, in the one hanod,
of a traditional precccupation with scahorne marauders and on the other of ancient city
walls? Or did the inhabitants have different attitudes, born of expevience, towards the
need to protect their womenfolk? Given that the majority of the rebels were
Cornishmen they were all the more ‘strangers’ to the people of Bxeter than to those of
Plymouth and that much morve desperate by the time they reached the Exe than when
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they swarmed across the Tamar It says wmuch for this book that while it auswers few
such guestions it bids fair to spark off a new phase of local inquiry and discussion,
Oue final message, directed partieularty a#t the publishers: why, when they have a
book based on such wide reading, at least of printed sources, don't they make the book
really useful by encouraging the author to provide more than minimal source refer-
ences?
dJoyee Youinys

Devon Gardens. An Historical Survey, Edited by Steven Pugsley. vi + 186pp, maps,
illuste, Alan Sutton i association with the Devon Gardens Trust, ISBN 0-7508-0055-5
(khy £19.99; 0-7509-0662-6 tph).

With this handsome and informative volume the Devon Gardens Prusl has some claim
to have overtaken its pioneering Hampshire counterpart. Devan Gardens [ully stands
comparizon with DMeasure Grounds: The Gardens and Lendscapes of Hompshire on
which it is modelled, and the two stand alone as wide-ranging moedern surveys of the
garden histary of individual Fnglish counties. Buch includes a gazetteer of major parks
and gavdens in Lhe county, and the Devan volume scores by the highly useful inclusion
of an index. Each is vevy fully itlustrated lrom contemporary material, extensive use
being made in the Devon volume of the valuable pictorial record provided by the early-
eighleanth century Prideanx drawings. The ten acticles on various aspects of Devon's
garden history excecd the eight for Hampshire and indicate the wide range of topies (or
consideration in this burgeoning field of enquiry. Hopefully they will be seen in the
future as the inspiration for much further research, for they show how theve is still
much to do. Two, by Robert Hes af medioval, Tudor and Sinart parks and by Todd Gray
on fruit trees and-the walled gavden in early modern Devon, elearly hreak ground for
further investigation. lles specifically calls for more work, pointing out that only
Chehampton Park has been studied in detail and i cannot be cansidered as typical.
Todd Gray, who has provided much of the means for further research iy his painstak-
ing survey of the documentary sources available for Devon garden history, shows in his
article how such material could be exploited lor a solid study of Mruit farming and the
cider industry, Three fine articles, by Robin Fausset on Casile Hill, Richard Stone on
Endsleigh, and David Mawson on Wood show how such research can be applied to par-
ticular gardens, and Steven Pugsley’s introductary survey, Rosemary Lauder's sketch of
some vanished gardens, and David Richardson's aceount of public parks and gardens
indicate other gardens available for study.

This reviewer was left with a sense of how quickly gardens vanizk and in particular
ol how even the garden history of the last two hundred years 15 slipping away from us
fast. Audrey e Lievre's very informative account of the nurseries and nurserymen of
the nincteenth contury shows the sotid commoergial infrastructure that was built up to
support the Victorian and Edwardian gardeners of Devon. However until recently gar-
den history has been obsessed with earlier periods. Even in this bool gems of this peri-
od tend to get a passing glance, The gardens of Oldsway Mansion, if they are indeed by
the great late-nineteenth century French garden designer Achille Duchene, need to be
publicised far more, since recently Christopher Thacker in TVhe Genius of Gardening:
The history of gardens in Britain and freland has described Lthe water garden at
Blenheim as Duchene’s only English work. Oldsway is now a free public gavden and
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Richardson reminds us of the wealth of public parks and gurdens in Devon (ineuding
what is regarded as the first in the country at Northernbay, Exeter, (vom 16812), arich
field of stwdy thal is ondy jusl being dizscovered nationally,

These studies also bring out the importance i garvden histury ax in all ather fields of

applying the wider facets of the histarians cralt. We do need to date and forin a sense
of aceurate chronology. In his wide-ranging introductory survey Steven Pugsiey vightly
uses this to point Lo the conservatism ol Deven gardencees, There are grounds to suspect.
that thiz will be the general conclusion is meve county studies are made, Garden histo-
viang have too veadily assumed that when new ideas emerged they became general
almost overnight — untrue even in individual gardens. For example, while a new
Kentian landscape appeared avound the edges of Stowe from the 17305 onwards,
Bridgeman's formal central axis with its geometric pond remuined until after mid-con-
tavy and may woll have had a far greater influence on Castle Hill than the French
examples Robin Fausset credits, We need also to be awace of the distinetly social pur-

pose of gardens antil vecent ttmes — they were part of the up-with-the-Joneses game of

the ruding efite, Pugsley sliributes the backwardness of Devon gardens to the county’s
distance from Courl and from the leading practitioners of that game. He mighl also
congider the internal secial campasition of the county which was too big and where
there were ton fow great landowners tor Lhere to be the competition for domination as
elzewhere. Sueh competition iovolved tavish expenditere, with building and gardening
playing key roles, the possibly ruinous conseguences of which meant that landowners
didn’t ged involved unless they had to, Fausset provides a very salulory example in
Matthew Frtescue's decision to build 2 temple in memory of his hall-brother at Castle
Hill in the 17505 Prigected for EHO0 it fnal cost was £700 — afler which he vesolved to
gpend nu more on garden improvement!

Lastly there is a need [or a histovical understanding and clarvification ot the Lthearet -
ical eomeepts behind gavden trends in order to understand theiv design, Two of these
articles, by Peter Hunt on Swete's journeys and by Stone on lndsleigh deseribe "pie-
turesque’ landseapes with a minimum of explanation of what vonlemporaries meant by
thal term. Hunt contents himself with citing Gilpin's remurk on the subject, which is
awkward for him since Gilpin found Deven a most un-picturesque county in hix pub-
lished Observations on the Western Parts of England whereas Swete entliusiastically
saw the pleturesque everywhere in the county. More has to be said of the: great debate
of the 17908 which we kuow, from his journal entry on Combe, Bwete llowed and on
which his travels are Lo some extent a commentary. He had a distinet view - he
admired the work of Capability Brown al Mamhead and Combe, whereas Payne
Enight and Price developed their theorles of the pieturesque inoreaction against the
Brown style. There are nuances to this style which require greater constderation than
is given here, difftcult though it is to attempt it Repton satd in his Red Book on
[indsleigh that the picturesgue was "mors casy to understand than to define’ and Hunt
provides a delicious acenunt of how the acsthetics of a style which worshipped decay
and dizarder weve beyond a miller who shook his head in disbeliof at Swete's admira-
Lien of the dilapidated state of his mill! Vignettes such as this provide vivid human
links between these present acticles and the vich gardening past which they deseribe
and make this an entectaiving as wekl as an educative volume. We look for more to fol-
low!

Michael Dufiy

o
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We Remember D-Day and A Wrens-Eye View of Wartime Dartmouth,
Dartmouth History Reseavch Group, Papers 11 and L2, both eompiled by Mrs Ray
Freeman, 1994, available from the Dartmouth Musewm or The Harhour Goolshap,
Dartmouth. at £2.50 each. {SBN 1 898011 00 5 and 1 899011 11 3.

These, the two most recent papers issued by the Dartmouth History Reseacch Graup,
deserve 1 warm welcome, They are similar in format, which in the cose of the D-Day
volune is delined as follows: "This then is not an official history but a colleetion of per-
sanal =taries aboul a dramatic period of the war by those who were actually there!

The stoieism of the people of the South Hams when faced with the prospect of total
vvacuation from their homes and land is deflly drawn oul iz the enrly part ol Paper 11,
The scgregation practiced by the US. contingents will surprise many readers. Eye-wit-
ness accaunts of British, LS. and Canadian participation demonstrate the thorough-
neas al the prepacations for the real event, while the circumstanees survounding the
tragedy of Fxercize Tiger are explained in detail. The assembly of 485 craft in the Dart
bifore D-Day was clearly a remarkable achievement; one observer commenting that
they were s ihickly packed ‘that one could almost walk across the river on them,” The
heroizny and courage of the men and women involved places D-Day sdongside the great-
esl military feat= of any age, ag this paper modesily bul effectively demonstrates.

Paper 12 is concerned with the WRNS, many of whom o the early days were recruil-
ed 1n a place like Dartmouth as immobiles’, and promptly took over jobs in establish-
wments lilke the Royal Naval Calloge femerly done by naval men. The catelul documen-
Lation of Wren accommodation in Dactraonth will be of particubar interest to local his-
toviansg and individual property ownevs alike, The graphie seeounts of air attacks upon
Dartmouth in 1942 and 1903 make moving veading and retlect the close relations
between gservice and civilinn residents in what bhad beconte a front-line town. The
impact of the arrival of Amoerican personned in the town, and the highly confidential
role plaved by the members of the WRNS in Dartmouth, prior to D-Day, are bolh cleas-
ly demonstrated. AH this, and the strain and tension of the situation, is vividly con-
veyed inr the words of those involved.

Mrs. Ray Freeman is to be wormly congratulated: she has compiled bath these
papers but hag allowed the actusl poarticipants L speak for themselves, Seeking out
such a wide range of contributors represents a great challenpe. Added to Lhis, the woav-
ing together of quotationy for a vartety of sources, never an easy Lask, has been necom-
plished with great skill, Both papers are well worth reading and are significant contri-
bulions to the available literature on the history of World War 11 in Deven.

dofin Bosankn

Brittle glass: a history of the Holland and Beavis families, by Susan Hartnell-
Beavis, Yeovil: Beaufort Press, 1993,

This i3 as much an accound of how an enthusiastic fover-enlhusiastic?} amateur set
about tracing her husband’s family tree as it is a history of the families she
researched. Much ot the information on the carly Holland family is derived from
standard sources; the main intorest, from the point of view of the Devon listorian, i<
the author's discussion of the will of Heary Beavis of Barnstaple, made in 1823, and of
thre socinl life and ramifications of the family which ib reveals. The most exciting parls
of the book, however, are the accounts of a surgeon’s life in First World War Belgium
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and Serbia, and {more unusually) of an Englishworman’s experiences in Nazi occupied
Pavis,
Stuart A. Raymaond

The Haytor Granite Tramway and Stover Canal by Helen Harris, Peninsula
Press. 1994 64pp. Paperback. £4.99. ISBN 1 872640 28 1

Back in 1964, while still a cottage induslry, the publishers David and Charles
produced a paperback study of the Haytor Granite Tramway and Stover Canal by
M.C. Ewans. This drew attention to a previously little regarded feature of Devon’s
industrial history, which included the county’s oldest railway and second oldest canal.
The public interest was sufficient to justify an enlarged hardback edition two years
later. )

While that book has long been out of print, otficialdom has become invelved and the
remains are now regarded us ‘Herifage', and partly incerporated into a route called
the Templer Way, after the family dynasty that promoted the schemes. This route was
declared officially open in 1987, although net continuous. Leaflets are available from
loeal Tourist Information Centres. and interpretation panels are sited at various
points en route, but for those requiring more substantial fare there had been only
Derek Beavis’s guide to the route published by Obelisl Publications in 1892, Since
then the towpath along the middle section of the Stover Canal has been opencd to the
public, something of which T was guile unaware of until reviewing this hook.

The author’s eredentials as the foremoest autherity on Durlmoor industries will he
familiar to Devon History Soclety members, The book s illustrated with line drawings
by George Thurlow, although my personal preference in a work of record is for
photographs. Few would venture to challenge the author on her own chosen lervitory
of granite working and canal history, but there were two occasions when I raised a
critical eyebrow. James Templer, the founder of the dynasty, = said to have been born
of a poor Exeter family, but apprentliced as a joiner; presumably not too poor to have
afforded the premium necessary for a skilled apprenticeship. This aroused my
curiosity suffielently to justify an hour in the Westeountry Studies Cenlre in search of
further information. James’s father had been a blacksmith in Excters Preston Street,
but died when the boy was enly six. Even then his mother continued to lease the
property and contribute to the poor rate, so my interpretation of the sources is that
James’s rise to riches was one from modest respectability rather than vags.

The other point concerns public access, and is very much a matter of apiviown; the
author writes that much of the route of the tramway is aceessible by public foatpaths.
Of eourse it depends on one's expectations, hut although it is several years aince [
walked the upper section, T was left with the opinian that much of it was inaccessible,
even within the National Park boundary.

Further improvements to the route are in prospect, and it is to be hoped that some
alternative to the scctions along roads will be pravided very shovtly, but until then
this is not one of the World's Great Walks, althaugh it is now one well served with
puidebonks.

A G Collings
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Tavistock's Yesterdays. Episodes from her history, 10, by G. Woodeock. Published
by the auther 1994, BEpp, Numerous illusteations. £3.95.

Historian and author Gerry Woodenek is to be eongratulated on praducing his tenth
annual volume of his series about Tavistock's past, He has marked the milestone {per-
haps in response to a request last year from this divectiond by including on a separate
sheet an index to articles contained in the collection so far, and this is much appreciat-
ed. Set in the usval attractive format this Intest issue includes & general brief history of
Tavistock, and » valuable section onr Lhe portraits in its Town Fall — with nineteen
clear monochrome reproductions of Lhe pnintings together with a section of text on
each, which help to bring the history to life. ‘The emphasis throughout the book is
greatly on people, which is doubtless as it should be in view of its dedication to them.
Sections on the town’s foundries - recalling the busy mining era - Tavistock and the
Great Reform Act, and detidls of the history of the Lown clock are amongst the interest-
ing subjects covered.

Helen Hurris

LOOKING AHEAD

The DHES 19895 Summer Conference will he held at Honiton on Saturday 8 July, based
in the Mackarness Hall. The morning talk will he given hy Robin Stanes, and there will
be another in the afternoon yet to be arranged. There will be opportunities to visil St
Michael's Church and Allhallows Museum, and finally tea in the Mackarness Hall.

The theme of the AGM in our Silver Jubileg Year, to be held in Exeter on 21 October,
will include a talk by Dr. Kate Tiller on the state of the arl i loeal history, and in the
afternoon a review of the past twenty-five years in this fleld, and a {ook ahead. ‘Past,
Present, and Future’ with, it is hoped, three appropriate speakers.

FULL DETAILS WILL BE SENT TO MEMBERS IN DUE COURSE



A PLEA FOR ACCURACY AND CONSISTENCY

Bvery issue of The Devon Historian includes a *Note lor Contributors’ which asks
authors to submit their papers Lo a consistent style. A similar request in the
Transactions of the Devonshire Associalion axks writers to ‘eomsult recenl numbers of
the Transactions as to style, Javout, ete” and ndds Further information on style can be
oblained from the Editor’,

All professional publishers have their own house or preferved style, and most targe
firms provide their authors with a copy. ‘This i3 to ensure that all manuseripts arriving
on the editor's desl are produced us near as possible to the house style of the company,
thus saving work lor the editor Lavge publishers insist that all books coming from
their pstablishment ave consisteat, tn malters of detail like the representation of dates,
the use of initial capital tetters, the expression of distanees and whether single or dou-
ble quotation marks ave cmployed.

With the aviglability of word processors in the home over the past few years the pos-
sibility of desk-top publishing has avisen. Numereus cottage-industry publishers of his-
torieal and lopugraphieal boaks have appeared, produced by people working in their
spare time to produce theiv own Litles, and sometimes publishing other writers’ work.

Not having been involved in the protessional diseipline of mainstream publishing
they are unversed in the details nl‘l;\mhLy haak production, s the lack of a house style
and frequent misprints theough careless proof reading means that a shoddy book s the
vesult. I feel that this failure Lo observe publishing conventions is sad, and seems
Hnked to a lowering of standards in manuseript presentation. If an author is producing
his or her own book it would seem sensible to ask a trusted and cvitical friend to read
the manuseript before it is printed to eliminate as many evrors as possible.

I could go on al length to list the kind of error which irritates the reader and dis-
tracts (vom Lhe uselulness of the book, but considerations ol space must mil iy obser-
vations Lo a few of Lthe more common howlers,

Spelling mistakes of proper names are the most unforgivable of errors, The misuse of
the apostrophe is another common fault, and even otherwise well-produced books will
sometimes insert one in, say, ‘the 18708 when none is vequired. The correct form is ‘the
L8704 And the apostrophe will creep Into ‘ibs’ when it st necessary and be omitted
when it is. Consisteney of style means carrying through the book the same forms of
expression in dates, distances, heights, and s0 on. And centuries should be consistently
spelt. Semetimes one sees *19th century’ and ‘eighteenth century” on the same page.

[uitial capital letlers should be used sparingly, and there is no need to have capitals
fir the seasons, or compass points (Lhough Wesl Devon Council, for example, would be
an exception). Ttalics should be used for foreign words and phrases like double entendre
and farx pes, and ship names like HMS Nelson. TF one’s word processor or typewriter
cannot produce itafics, the instruection to the printer to italicise is assumed by underlin-
ing the words. (Sometimes it is wise to pencil the instructions ‘ital” in the margin along-
gidel.

When one embarks on reading 2 new book arnd finds misprints cropping up, my faith
in the author flags, and T lind that instead of reading the baok for its content { am con-
stantly wondering what solecism 1will find aext!

Brian Le Messurier

NEWS FROM LOCAL SOCIETIES

At the vecent AGM of The Devon History Society mention was mode of the vsefultiess
of puarish exhibitions as means of interesting people in the historical past, Muany parish-
s, of course. have already staged impressive exhibitions. Others have nol vet done so,
pasaibly because of apprehension ag lo whal it would entail. One of our members, Mr
Jahn Sage, of Luppttt. near Honiton, has written some noles of one such event in his
uwn parish, and they are reproduced here in the hope that Lhey muay encournge others
to launch out in similar fashion. It must be hard to find a parish anvwhere thal does
not have, on investigation, a fair amount of brdy intevesting materinl, As many mem-
bers will know, often an exhibition of local history can be combined with g Alower fosti-
val in the church, and there can be few pleasanter ways of sperding a summer week-
end alternoon than going out to a parish - familiar or otherwise, and seeing what it has
Lo offer: And sometimes cream teas are also made available! Here then, is John Sage’s
aeeont:

A Luppitt event

The seed for the idea ol the Luppitt Parish Exhibition was planted several years ago
when the Devon Record OMlice offcred o bring malerial trom their archives to the
parish for display. Howover. the work of demolishiog the wooden village hall butlding
and the erection of a more permanent structure delayed nny possible progress towards
taking advantage of the offer. The possibility materialised at the completion of the
main hall building and the DRO was agnin eomtacted and were able Lo help,

A small comuuittee, wilth representatives from the Parish Couneil and the Parochial
Chureh Council, was formed to arrange the details. The DRO wmaterial was to be set up
by them in the centre of the floor urea. and the lncal material plong the sides and the
stage end, arranged and grouped under suitalle subjects.

Parish Council Pride of place was (o be given to the parish Tithe map of 1842, [ts size
was the Frst problem, and how to present it as it iz 1061 8in high and 718 3 n wide, The
solution was Lo fasten top and bottom to rotlors and these Lo a freestanding [rame,
Handles to the rollers enabled any part of the map to be at eve level as vequired, amd
the system proved to be quile satisfaclory. A study of its detatl was quite reveazling in
conjunction with the apportionment lists, which gave information in the nine columns
as to owner, accupier, avea. cullivalion, name and computation values for each of 1,576
plats. A David & Charles reprint of the nineleenth century first edition of the one-inch
to the mile map of the arca was on view, and a few of Lthe more important items con-
cerning Parish Council mectings sinee 1884, and Vestry meetings prior to that date.
Also Tists of dwellings shown an the Tithe map but not now in existence — in the days of
thatched roofs many were desteoyed by fire ~ and of dwellings built since 1842 were
shown,

Chureh gnd Schoot The stage end of the hall was occupied with many reeords and
exhibits concerning our early tourteenth century pavish church as well as the viltage
sthool, banlt in 1877 and in use as such until 1966, A valued album of nearly 200 pho-
tus of the chureh kindly taleen in the early part of the last war in case of damuge by
spemy action, and rarely seen, was on view, copies of church registers from 1711, a
record book of Lthe aceounts of o "Chureh Lands’ charity from 1885, Frst mentioned
about 1750, o chureh and yard plan of 1928, a flake afehect foune in the cluirchyare in
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197, reputed 1o be of 2,000 BC plus, and an income Lax assessment hook of 1910 leat
for the oceasion, as were several old photographs, The schook attendanes rogister with
1,368 enlries, a complete list of the OO children at the schosl in 1893, sume photos
taken by the first masier’s son, probably about Lhe turn of the contory, were alsa all on
display.

Chlureh Bells and Bellvinging Tower plans from the foundry of John Taylor & Ca of
Loughborough for the angmentations of 1928 and 1974, dates and details of ihe ving of
eight bells, & mode! bell as hung for ringing and constderable information on methed
vinging and publications in book form dealing with it were shown,

St Laeppitd Platoon D Compeny, T9th Scuton Beatt, Dovon Home Clrard, Publicalions
voncerning Lhe activities in many spheres of the national war effort 1939-45, with inlor-
matinm about the two seclions of Luppitt platoon. A (ramed and illustrated list of the
sixty-thyee members, our duties in guarding the Homlon railway tannel east of the
Lown during the period 24 Apeil te 10 July 1844, local exercises, aud details of a fow
amusing incidents in the midst ol our anxietics.

e Mary Rose Due to the vaising of this ship in October 1982 there wias particular
interest due to the fact that Sie George Carew who was in ecommand as Viee Admirat of
Henry VIITs fleet, went down wilh her in the Solent, and his home was one of the four
Domesday Manors listed in Luppitt pavish. His younger brother Siv Peter had a very
notable career in both English anegd French courts in the turbulent times of the six-
teenth century. The display gave som® details of the vessel, her building, refit and sink-
ing, and more vecent raising and plans lor vestoralion, as well as some information
about the Carew family whose home here was in their occupation for about 270 years,

Grenerad and Historical The last gsection of the local contribution dealt with various
matiers, o list of publications with authors and dates which gave some information
aboul Luppitt and it peaple, census numbers, exceptional weather dates. inchaling
floods of 10.Inly 1968 and the snow blizzards of 196823, Duvcing the latter, reminders of
the convoy of 6 February which took 3t bours to get to Floniton anly four miles dis-
tant, with tractors and trailers containing churns of 700 gallons of milk by twenty-
three men with eleven bractars, shovelling snow where possible from the high banked
lanes, and where impraclical finding a route Lhrough felds to avoid drilts. A list of the
names of thirty-four Luppitt men who joined the Duke of Monmouth as he moved
through the area to his ill-Iated batile at Sedgemoor, Lthree of whom were apprebended
and shipped off to the West Indies, probably as plantation labour, the rest noted to be
‘AL Large’ by W. Macdonald Wighield. At least ten diffevent spellings of the parish name
known over Lhe centuries were noted, and a fow of the more important national dates
and what occurved.

Devon Record Office Material was exhibited on prepaved stands arranged by stall, and
showed plans of church, school and a new vicarage of 1851, Land Tax records, some
tocal Carm sales, public house licence documents, o will oi’ 1741, manors, ninetesnti
century divectories, schvol loghooks, poor law detail, and apprenticeship indentures of
1747- 1771, much matevial we did not know existed, The Village Hall was the centre of
much activity on that day: in the moruing the neeessary layving out of the material for
viewing, and from 2 p.m. onwards the buailding was full of interested people, many of
wham afterwards expressed pleasure acd appreciation.

Qkehampton Local History Socicty has forty-three members amongst whom ave
sene well known to DEHS members, including Dr R.L. Taverner, its Patron, Chainnan
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Major J.ID. Shebbeare, ond Seovetary Mes M. Bird, Monthly mectings usually consist of
tatks — generally with slides -~ and in the past vear included Mrs Helen Harris on
Dartmoor farming through the ages, Dr Christopher Brooks on stained glass in Devon.
Mrs Audrey Brskine who spoke about the acchitects and workforce of Exeter
Cathedral, and Mr Adrian Recd on the French prisoners of war on parole in Devon dur-
ing the revolutivnary and Napoleonic wars. In January, instead of a tall, the OLHS
holds an annual dinner, and in April the AGM, foltowing which members Mr and Mrs
John Comvn eastomarily show holiday slides. Members share car transport for an
expedition cach June — last year to churches and a garden in the Lapford and Nymet
Rowland area, tollowed by tea at the chairman’s medieval manor howse home.

Milton Abbot Discoverers trofarred ta as MAD) This Hvely group has vecently been
formed by enthusiastic members and has already held an exhibition and Dower festival
which brought overwhelming interest. The hias is strongly towards local history, com-
bined with soctability. Talks arve held regularly and a newsletter provided. Contact:
Jane Willinmson tel, 0822 617311

Old Plyimouth Society. The now up-and-running OPS produced its first newsletter
ttwo-sided single sheet, well-filled) in September 1994, It has alse published a second
study bovklel. on Plymauth Palmersion Forts, bring the teet of a lecture given to the
sociely by Freddy Woadward in 1993, This s an informative paper on a fascinating
subject, Hlustrated with photographs and a map. The coming year’s programme
inctudes D Johi Grier on ‘A history of Plymouth hospitals’ on 18 Augrust, and Mr Bay
Bush on “Che Plymouth feals’ on 12 February 1996, Details from Secretury Nicholas
Casley. 94 Glendower Road, Plvimouth, PL3 ALD.

Yelverton & Distriet Local History Society has recently produced its 12th
Newsletter, for 1994-5 (34 pages of inforimatian ineluding cavd cover), froe o members,
£1L.30 to non-members. As always the newslettor is elosely packed with numerous short
articles which arve both informative and entlertaining. Both society and newsletter now
pwe mueh to current chairmanssecretary and editor Paul Rendell (who i8 now also
coungil member of the Devon Iistory Society), Ths address is 20 Rolston Close,
Southway, Plvanouth, PLE GPE,
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fIL has hecome apparent thal in 183 we Sumped a year' in numhberiug Lthe scssions of
the Aunual General Mecling, deseribing the AGM of the previous vear as ‘the 2ist’, In
fact, of eouwrse, 1990s mecting was Lhe 20th, that for 1991 {reported April 19921 the
2Lk, and so ou until the regent one, for 1994, reported hece, which was the 24th.
Membears may ke to awend their recent past copies so that they are accurate for
record purposes. Wo apologise tor these evrors and for any confusion caused. B,y

Minutes of the 24th Annual General Meeting held at the
School of Education, University of Exeter, 15 October 1994

Present: In the Chair, the President, De Basil Greenhill; ¢, 30 members of the Socicty,

1 Apologies: Mes. M. Stanbrook, the Misses P Salter, L. Smith and B, Stanbrook, The
Rev. BF Atherton, Messes, M. Beaumont, J. Bosanko, J. Dilley, D T, Greaves, Col. (.
imshaw, Prof, NL Orme, M B Sereech, Dr R.R. Sellman, Messes, G. Tatham, C.
Taylor, 8. Timmas,

2 The Minutes of the last AGM, as pointed in Fhe Devon Historien 48, were approved,
and signed by the Chatrman,

3 Matters Avising: None,

4 Secretaries’ Reports
Mrs. 8. Stivling reported enjoyable day conferences al Teignmouth in March and en
Torridgeside in July, and thanked Mr Pike and D Grant Tor organising these
Professor Youings had represented the society at the Public Snguiry over whether o
road should be built over part of Braunton Ceeat Field, This danger had now been
averted. The Couneil had sent letters urging the saleguarding of resources for bocal his-
torians after loead government ve-orgamsation. 1t had also sought re-nssursree that the
change ol status envisaged for the Exeler Avthacological Field Unit in 1995 would vt
affoct its valuable work, Mrs, Stirling thanked her follow secretaries and the Geasureer
for their help. She also urged the seevetaries of loeal sotictios to seud nolices of Pheir
mectings for inclusion in e Deeon Historien, and to ket her kuow (f this publicity
proved useful. My Pike reported that muanbership records were naw up o date, and
thanked tho treasurer (ur his help in this matter

The Chairman invited questions from the floor, e Collin reguested that the Cauucil
try to avoid conferences and other mectings clashing with thase of ather sacintios, and
suggested phoning their seeretaries when choosing dates. These sugpostions were
noted.

5 Treasurer’s Report

M E. Haydon veported an exeess of expenditure aver income, due ta the vising casts of
publication and postage. There was now @ aet deficit of 2ome €214 After diseussion,
Mr. Pike proposed that the aceounts be adopted. This was secanded by & Reed, and
passtd unanimously.

36

6 Notice of amendments to the Revised Constitution of the Society proposed
by the Chavity Commissioners

The Amendments as cirendated b members and recommended by the Council were
tabled, vin:

Clause 4 () o be amended by the addition of the words underlined. ..

... The Coundil shall osrmally mect at Jeast three times dircings the year and shall be
able Lo appoinl cornmillees which shall b answerable te the Couneil, provi that all
aetions of such conmiltees ave reported back to the Counal as soon s possibile.

Clause Lt to be amended by the insertion of Lhe words underlined, and by Uhe substi-
tution of e word ‘twenty-one’ for the word ‘bwenty-cight’ in the penultimate line
thereof...

Amendment of. . Constitution may be made... provided that ne amgnsdugnt shatl be
made which would hiwve the effect of causing the Sociely Lo cease La be o chavity at law,
Notice of . sueh amendmient must be givea in wriling Lo the seeretary nof less than
Lventy-ome: clear days beflore the meeting...

The amendhinents were proposed hy dre Haydon, seconded hy Me Stanes, and passed
unanimonsly,

The amended canstitution would be published in the next issue of The Devon
Historien (Spring 14950,

7 Subscriptions

The treasurer submitted that the subzertption of £5.00 poa., anchanged for 14 vears, no
langoer covered publication and postage, With conference and other expenaes, there was
a deficil of £3,42 per member per annum. The Couneil recommended vaising subserip-
tions to LL0 for individuals, snd £156 for families and mstitutional mewmbers, with life
membership available to individual members (or £100. In the course ol discugsion il
was pointed oul that £10 was 2 lob in the eurrent economic climate, and sutne members
would leave rather than pay the new rates. One member wished to know i there would
he more, ov improved, services, The treasuver replicd that by comparisem with other
societies, E10 was reasonable, and there would be no need for another ineregse for some
time. [n response to the argument that inflation might eventually cause the Society 1o
lose over life subseriptions, he pointed out the advantages of extra capital to invest in
the first years. The Councl’s recommendations were then propased by Me Haydon, sec-
onded by My Pike, and passed by a large majority.

% Editor’s Report

Mrs. Harvis thanked all researchers and writers concerned with the spring and
autwmn editions of The Devon Historien., They had covered all parts of Devon, and
dealt with a broad range of subjects, ranging from intensive studies relating to particu-
lar parishes, to more general appraisals of the county’s history. She reported an
improvement in the presentation of copy, but urged all intending contributors to adhers
to the 'house style’ ag set out on page 2 of every issue. Mrs, Harris acknowledged the
valued help given by Mrs, Stirling in dispatching copies by post twice a year - no hight
taskc — and also as reviews secretary. She usked members Lo note thal books for review
should be sent to Mra. Stivling. Mrs. Harris had some material in hand for the spring
issue, which would be the 50th, but she needed move. She emphasised that shorter
pieces, or those with a light touch would be very welcome, as would reports and out-
lines of future plans [rom parish and other local history societivs, Al topy tor the
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spring issue should be submitted by 30 November

9 Election of Council 19845,

As Professor Youings was standing down s chairman, Me A. Reed was proposed by the
Council. There were no other nominations, and My Reed was duly elected, nem. con.
Mr. Bosanko, Mr. Tatham, and Mr. Tayler had tendered their resignations from
Council. De. T. Gray, Dr. 1. Greeves, and My, Rendell, a1} duly nominated and sceonded,
were elected to fill the varancies, and Dv. Grant and My Timms, who stood down under
the three-year rule. were re-elected.

10 Any Other Business

Conferences 1995, The spring meeting on the theme ‘Sound and [rage’, would be held
at the Plymouth Athenacum on 18 March. The summer meeting at Toniton in July,
wanld he concerned with that borough's infameus election record, and the ot uncon-
nected) history of local eider. There would also be a joint meeting with the Devon
Archaecological Society on Tuesday 7 February at Exeter. It was hoped thal this new
venture waotld be well supported,

The new chairman then thanked Professor Joyee Youings, Lhe retiring chairmon, for
many years of hard work for the soctety. He paid tribute te her scholarship, administra-
tive skills, and energy in the post, and presented her with honorary life membership,
and a handsome north Devon harvedt jug commissioned from Harry Juniper by the
Council. Professor Youings, ‘delighted, thrilled, and overwhelmed’, thanked M Riecd
for the tributes, and said she had enjoyed her time as chairman, a task made plessant
for her by other afficers and members of the Council and Society. She wished them and
the new Chairiman every suceess in the futuve

THE DEVON HISTORY SOCIETY
THE CONSTITUTION

NAMI
1 The name of the Soctety shall be The Devon History Sociely (hersinaller called
“The Society").

PURPOSES
20at The Societly is established lor charitable purposes only,
th) The object of The Society shall be to promote the advancement of education by
furthering the study of Deven Hislory.

MEMBERSHIP

d Membership of The Socieby shall he open to any person, and Corporate
Membership to any society or organisation, on payment of such annual subserip-
tion as shall be determined at the Anmual General Meeting,

MANAGEMENT
Had The Officers shall comprise a Chainnan, Vice-Chairman, Sevrelary, Treasurer
and Editor, elected anually at the Annual Genecal Meeting.

() Management of The Society shall be vested in a Couneil consisting of the five offi-
cerg, with nine other members who shall be clected at the Annual Generval
Meeting o serve for three years, one thivd vetiring each year, retiving members
beiny eligible for re-election. The Council shall have the power to co-opt up to four
ather persons and o fill casual vacancies, The Couneil shall normally meet at
least three tiales duving the year and shall be able to appoint committees which
shalt be answerable to the Council, provided that all actions of such committees
are veported back to the Council as soon 45 passible,

PRESIDENT

5 A President sholl be elected at an Annual General Meeting to serve for three
years, beginning at the next Annuwad General Meeting (at which he or she shail be
invited to give n Presidential addressy, The President shall preside over General
Meetings.

ANNUAL GENERAL MERTING

4] The Annual General Meeting shall normally be hield during October each year in
Exeter (when the formal accounts [or Lthe previous year will be presented). Each
corperate member may send two representatives who, together with every other
person attending (being an individual member) shall be entitled to vote, Ak least
twenty-one clear days’ notice shalt be given in writing by the Sccretary to the
mernbers,

BUSINESS OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

7 The business of the Annual General Meeting shall include the appointment of an
Auditer and the presentation lor adoption of the Aanual Reports and the Audited
Ageounts.

30








